FULL COUNCIL

16 JANUARY 2024

Present:

Councillors Clarance (Chair), D Cox (Vice-Chair), Atkins, Bradford, Bullivant, Buscombe, Daws, Foden, Gearon, Hall, Hayes, Hook, Jackman, James, Keeling, Lake, Morgan, Mullone, Nutley, Nuttall, Palethorpe, C Parker, P Parker, Parrott, Peart, Purser, Radford, Rollason, Rogers, Ryan, Sanders, Smith, Steemson, G Taylor, J Taylor, Thorne, Webster, Williams and Wrigley

Apologies:

Councillors Goodman-Bradbury, MacGregor, Swain, Henderson and Dawson

Officers in Attendance:

Phil Shears, Managing Director
Martin Flitcroft, Chief Finance Officer & Head of Corporate Services
Paul Woodhead, Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer to the Council
Trish Corns, Democratic Services Officer
Kay Fice, Scrutiny Officer
Christopher Morgan, Trainee Democratic Services Officer
Tom Phillips, Assets Manager
Neil Blaney, Head of Place & Commercial Services

1. COUNCILLOR HUW COX

The Chair referred to the very sad passing of Councillor Huw Cox Ashburton and Buckfastleigh Ward Councillor and Executive Member for Business and the Teignbridge 100 housing programme, and who was previously the Chair of our Overview and Scrutiny.

The meeting stood for a minute's silence and the Council's flag was flown at half mask as a mark of respect.

The Leader, group leaders and fellow ward members paid tribute on behalf of all Councillors, to a respected colleague who would be sadly missed.

2. MINUTES

It was proposed by the Leader and seconded by Cllr Keeling that the minutes of the meeting 28 November 2023 be approved.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of 23 November were approved signed as a correct record by the Chair.

3. ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Leader updated Members on the recent Local Government Association Peer Challenge Review and thanked all who took part. The follow up detailed report would result in an action plan to improve the work of the Council.

The Chair advised of the civic events he had attended which included an event which raised funds for Devon Air Ambulance.

The Vice Chair referred to a demonstration against the closure of Teignmouth hospital on 24 January 2024 at 1.30pm at Devon County Council offices main entrance.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

Cllr Daws declared an interest in Minute 9 future high street fund, by virtue of his position as Director of a non-profit community benefit interest society set up to preserve the Alexander Theatre, and advised he would take part in the agenda item.

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS

None.

6. RECOMMENDATION FROM AUDIT SCRUTINY - APPOINTMENT OF AN INDEPENDENT MEMBER TO SERVE ON AUDIT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The recommendation was proposed by the Chair of Audit Scrutiny Committee, seconded by the Executive Member for corporate resources and carried unanimously.

RESOLVED to appoint an independent member to serve on the Audit Scrutiny Committee.

7. COUNCIL TAX BASE 24/25

The Executive Member for Corporate Resources presented the report to approve the Council Tax base and thanked the Chief Financial Officer and his team for their work. He proposed the recommendation. This was seconded by the Leader and carried.

RESOLVED that the council tax base of 50,939 for 2024/25 be approved.

8. RECOMMENDATION FROM EXECUTIVE - COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

It was proposed by the Executive Member for Corporate Services and seconded by the Leader that the recommendation be approved. This was carried unanimously. The Executive Member for Corporate Services thanked the Service Lead for Revenue, Benefits and Customer Support and the team for their work on putting together the scheme.

RESOLVED that the Tax Reduction Scheme (attached as Appendix A to the Executive agenda report 4 January 2024) be adopted for the year 2024-25 with the income bands uprated in line with the annual uprating in primary welfare benefits.

9. CARER LEAVERS POLICY

It was proposed by the Leader, seconded by the Executive Member for Corporate Services and carried unanimously.

RESOLVED to adopt the Support for Care Leaver Policy attached as Appendix C, which incorporates a council tax discount, free membership to our leisure centres, and work experience opportunities.

10. FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND - PROJECT ADJUSTMENT

The meeting referred to the agenda report.

The Leader proposed an amendment to the recommendations set out at in the report at agenda page 43 to delete recommendation (2), and to replace the Executive Member for estates, assets, and parking with the Leader at recommendation (3).

The Executive Member for Planning seconded the proposal.

An amendment was proposed by Cllr Bullivant and seconded by Cllr Peart that the requirements of the proposal are delivered in accordance with the plans, delegation is authorised to officers to deliver the requirements and the Council is kept informed on progress.

It was proposed and seconded that the meeting moves into private session to enable the Monitoring Officer to give advice.

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting returned to public session.

A vote was taken on the amendment and was lost.

A vote was taken on the proposal and was carried.

RESOLVED to

- (1) Approve the submission of a Project Adjustment Request to Department for Levelling Up Housing and Communities (DLUHC) removing the cinema project, amending the Market Hall project and increasing the contingency for the Queen Street project.
- (2) Delegate authority to the Head of Place and Commercial Services (in consultation with the Leader and Chief Finance Officer regarding finalising the development details and prepare planning applications in line with the budget set out in Appendix 2 and timescales set out in Appendix 3 to this report) to take such other action as is necessary to implement the approved redevelopment of the Market Hall to which the approved funding scheme relates.

11. RECOMMENDATION FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (2) 12 DECEMBER 2023 FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND

The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2, Cllr Sanders confirmed that the matter of the call-in relating to the future high street fund had intended to be dealt with at Minute 10 above.

Cllr Sanders proposed that delegated authority be given to the Leader and Executive Members to fulfil their roles as is necessary to implement the approved redevelopment of the Market Hall to which the approved funding scheme relates. This was seconded by the Executive Member for Estates, Assets and Parking.

It was proposed and seconded that the meeting moves into private session to enable the Monitoring Officer to give advice.

RESOLVED that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting on the grounds of the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

The meeting returned to public session.

A vote was taken on the proposal and carried.

RESOLVED that delegated authority be given to the Leader and Executive Members to fulfil their roles as is necessary to implement the approved redevelopment of the Market Hall to which the approved funding scheme relates.

12. NOTICES OF MOTION

Cllr P Parker presented the motion that:

Any amendments to the agenda on a full council meeting need to be notified by 12 o'clock on the previous day to allow officers and members time to prepare their responses.

Two-thirds of Members present did not agree to debate the matter and therefore the matter was referred to the Procedures Committee.

13. COUNCILLOR QUESTIONS

None.

CLLR C CLARANCE Chair